
Minutes of the Pre-bid meeting held on October 18, 2021 
RFP-BD-2021-043 for Hiring a firm to Conduct a Baseline Study and develop an Action 
Plan for piloting SDGs localization at five Upazilas in Bangladesh 

 

                                                                                                   Date: October 18, 2021 

Members attended the meeting: 
Name Designation  
Zubayer Hossen Economist, SC4SDG Project, UNDP 
Kanika Dey SDG and M&E Analyst, SC4SDG Project, UNDP 
Mohammad Shahadut Hossain Mazumder Finance and Procurement Expert SC4SDG Project, UNDP 
Asma Nargis Sultana Programme Support Officer, UNDP 
Farhana Razzaque Project Associate, SC4SDG Project, UNDP 
Bidders 

 
With reference to the subject Re-RFP issued on October 11, 2021, please find below the queries raised by 
Invitees and answers thereto from UNDP Bangladesh: 
 

SL Queries  UNDP Response 

1. Is it possible to share the list of 
29+1 SDG indicators? 

Please provide two reports 
mentioned in the RFP step 1 desk 
review, including 29+1 indicators 

 Please see annex 1 for the list. 
 
 
Please note that the project will provide these reports to 
the awarded firm/think-tank. 

2. Considering the current COVID-19 
pandemic in mind, is it possible to 
arrange some of the Inception 
workshops/validation 
workshops/local level 
consultations/workshops online? 

Yes, it is possible to organize online 
consultations/workshops. However, UNDP would like to 
keep the provision for both virtual and in-person 
participation. 

3. Will you please include the work 
experience of the firm related to 
SDGs as a selection criterion? 

Please see the revised RFP document (page no. 08) for the 
newly added criterion placed under the expertise of the 
firm/think tank section in the revised RFP. Please see annex 
2 under Expertise of firm/Think Tank sl# 1.4 

4. Is it possible to reduce the desired 
length of professional experience 
determined for the firm/ think 
tank? 

Yes. We revise the experience in ten years. Please see 
annex-3 under Qualification of the Firm/Think Tank sl# 1 
 

5. Who will organize the national level 
and local level workshops? What 
would be the budget implication 
for this? 

What type of logistics support do 
you provide in organizing events 
/consultation workshops at Dhaka 
and selected Upazila? 

UNDP will organize the workshop. It is mentioned in the ToR 
under supervision, reporting, and performance evaluation 
page no. 17. Hence, no need to include the budget in the 
financial proposal for these workshops. 
 
UNDP will bear the cost of the food, venue, workshop 
materials, and TA for local participants. However, no travel 
cost for the representatives of the firm/think tank will be 
borne by UNDP. 
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6. What would be the sampling size 
for the facility survey and 
household survey? 

It is expected that the interested firm/think tank would 
propose the sample size in their methodology.   

7. Can the firm use the available 
secondary sources for some 
indicators? 

Yes, for some indicators, the firm can use secondary sources 
where the data is already available.  

8. Should the firm propose separate 
sample sizes for household survey 
and facility survey? 

Yes. The sample size must be different, and the selected 
samples should also be separate for each of the surveys. 

9. Is it possible to provide an example 
of the table mentioned in annexure 
A (page 20) of the ToR? 

Please see annex 4 for the example.  

10. Is it possible to get any support 
from the project to conduct the 
Facility survey or institutional 
survey? 

The project will try to provide the required support to 
conduct the facility survey/institutional survey 

11. Will we provide both audited 
financial reports and bank 
statement reports of 3 years or we 
would just provide only financial 
audit reports? 

It is mentioned under Criteria for the Assessment of 
Proposal page-5 of RFP document 

Audit report for last three years 2018-2019, 2019-2020, and 
2020-2021.     OR 

Bank Statement for last three years from June 2018 to 18 
October 2021.   

12. We have some NGOs operating 
schools at the Upazila level. Shall 
those schools also be considered? 

It depends on whether the study needs it or not.  

13. Does the firm/think tank need to 
submit all the CVs of key 
personnel? 

The firm should submit the CVs of the top five key personnel 
(Please follow instructions written on page 7 of the RFP).  

14. Clarification regarding criteria for 
the assessment of the proposal 

Concerning these criteria, the firm/think tank must follow 
the instruction mentioned on page 5 of the RFP.  

15. Whether any interested firm can go 
for a joint venture? 

Yes, interested firm can go for a joint venture.  

16 In the case of the joint venture 
should the bidder provide two 
different letters of declaration in 
both of the organization's 
letterhead? 

The bidder must submit duly signed copy of the form in the 
case of Joint Venture /Consortium/Association. Kindly see 
annex- 5: Joint Venture/Consortium/Association 
Information Form. 
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17 In the case of a Joint Venture, is it 
necessary for all the parties to 
fulfill the years of experience 
requirements or will the 
requirements only be applicable for 
the Lead firm? 

 

 

In the case of Joint Venture, Consortium or Association, 
please see the below  

1.1 If the Bidder is a group of legal entities that will form 
or have formed a Joint Venture (JV), Consortium or 
Association for  the Proposal, they shall confirm in their 
Proposal that : (i) they have  designated one party to 
act as a lead entity, duly vested with authority to legally 
bind the members of the JV, Consortium or 
Association jointly and severally, which  shall be  
evidenced by a duly notarized Agreement among the 
legal entities, and  submitted  with the Proposal; and 
(ii) if they are awarded the contract, the contract shall 
be entered into, by and between UNDP and the 
designated lead entity, who shall be acting for and on 
behalf of all the member entities comprising the joint 
venture.   

1.2 After the Deadline for Submission of Proposal, the lead 
entity identified to represent the JV, Consortium or 
Association shall not be altered without the prior 
written consent of UNDP.   

1.3  The lead entity and the member entities of the JV, 
Consortium or Association shall abide by the 
provisions of (The Bidder shall furnish documentary 
evidence of its status as an eligible and qualified 
vendor. In order to award a contract to a Bidder, its 
qualifications must be documented to UNDP’s 
satisfaction) herein in respect of submitting only one 
proposal.  

1.4 The description of the organization of the JV, 
Consortium or Association must clearly define the 
expected role of each of the entity in the joint venture 
in delivering the requirements of the RFP, both in the 
Proposal and the JV, Consortium or Association 
Agreement.   

1.5  

18 If any International Firm applies for 
this assignment, is a Joint Venture 
with a local firm is mandatory? 

No. It is not mandatory. Both the firms lead, and Joint 
Venture may be local/ International/ combination of both. 

19 Can you consider extending the 
proposal submission date by a 
minimum of one week? 

The submission deadline has been extended till 28 October 
2021.  

20 Is it allowed for the firm to use the 
basic data like population, gender, 
or area from BBS reports? 

Yes 
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Special note 

The Financial Proposal and the Technical Proposal files MUST BE COMPLETELY SEPARATE and uploaded 
separately in the system and clearly named as either “TECHNICAL PROPOSAL” or “FINANCIAL PROPOSAL”, 
as appropriate. The file with the “FINANCIAL PROPOSAL” must be encrypted with a password.  Please DO 
NOT put price anywhere in the submission or the e-tendering system other than the encrypted financial 
proposal. Please insert ‘1’ as your bid price in the e-tendering line item. Please do not mention the amount 
in the forwarding letter as well. 

Note: Above Clarifications in response to queries raised during the Pre-bid meeting and 
amendments shall be an integral part of the RFP document and supersede all provisions as 
applicable. 
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Annex-1:List of indicators for SDGs localization 
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Annex 2: Expertise of firm/Think Tank 

I. BASIS OF EVALUATION 
Criteria Weight Max. Point 

Technical Evaluation score 70% 70 

1.Expertise of firm/Think Tank 20% 20 

1.1 Relevant professional experience of the firm/Think Tank to 
develop baseline survey strategies, designing and conducting 
research and assessment for research institutions, government 
institutions, and UN agencies; 
 

5% 5 

1.2. Relevant working experience in development fields with 
local/national government and multi and bi-lateral development 
partners.  

5% 5 

1.3 Evidence of relevant research works particularly in conducting 
baseline study 5% 5 

1.4 Evidence of relevant experience of the firm related to SDGs  5% 5 

2.Proposed Methodology and Work Plan 

Quality and relevance of proposed methodology, approach, and 
quality of proposal  
 

25% 25 

3.Expertise of the Study Team 25% 25 

  
3.1Team leader - Educational Qualification and working Experience 5% 5 
3.2Development Expert - Educational Qualification and working 
Experience 5% 5 

3.3 Gender Expert - Educational Qualification and working 
Experience 5% 5 

3.4 Statistician/Data Analyst - Educational Qualification and 
working Experience 5% 5 

3.5 GIS Expert - Educational Qualification and working Experience 5% 5 

Financial 30% 30 

Total 100% 100 
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Annex 3: Qualification of the Firm/Think Tank 

The minimum eligibility criteria of the firm/Think Tank are as follows- 
 

1. At least 10 years of professional experience to develop survey strategies, designing and 
conducting research for government institutions, and UN agencies; 

2. At least 10 years' working experience in development fields with local/national government and 
multi and bi-lateral development partners and UN/UNDP; 

3. At least 10 years' experience in conducting research, household survey, baseline study for the 
government and reputed international organizations; and 

4. Experience in conducting at least 3 (three) baseline/end line evaluations in the past 10 years; 
 

Annex 4: Data Collection Mapping 

SDG 
Goal 

Indicator Data needed From where 
the data will 
be collected/ 
Data Source 

How the 
data will be 
collected/ 
Methods 

Tools to be 
used to 

collect data  

Remarks 

SDG - 5 Drop to 
zero of the 
prevalence 
of early 
marriage 
before age 
15 
among the 
women 
aged 20-24 
years] 

The 
percentage of 
women aged 
20-24 who 
were first 
married or in 
union before 
age 18, 
disaggregated 
by place of 
residence, 
wealth 
quintiles, 
education and 
other 
background 
characteristics. 

Household 
survey 

Computer 
aided 
personal 
interview 

Questionnaire  

 

 



Minutes of the Pre-bid meeting held on October 18, 2021 
RFP-BD-2021-043 for Hiring a firm to Conduct a Baseline Study and develop an Action 
Plan for piloting SDGs localization at five Upazilas in Bangladesh 

 

 

Annex 5: Joint Venture/Consortium/Association Information Form 

Name of Bidder: [Insert Name of Bidder] Date: Select date 

RFP reference: [Insert RFP Reference Number]  

 

 
To be completed and returned with your Proposal if the Proposal is submitted as a Joint 
Venture/Consortium/Association. 

No Name of Partner and contact information 
(address, telephone numbers, fax numbers, e-mail 
address)   

Proposed proportion of responsibilities 
(in %) and type of services to be 

performed  

1 [Complete] [Complete] 

2 [Complete] [Complete] 

3 [Complete] [Complete] 

 

Name of leading partner  

(with authority to bind the JV, 
Consortium, Association during the 
RFP process and, in the event a 
Contract is awarded, during contract 
execution) 

[Complete] 

 

We have attached a copy of the below document signed by every partner, which details the likely legal 
structure of and the confirmation of joint and severable liability of the members of the said joint venture: 

☐ Letter of intent to form a joint venture  OR  ☐ JV/Consortium/Association agreement  
 

We hereby confirm that if the contract is awarded, all parties of the Joint Venture/Consortium/Association 
shall be jointly and severally liable to UNDP for the fulfillment of the provisions of the Contract. 
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Name of partner: 
___________________________________  

Name of partner: 
___________________________________ 

Signature: ______________________________ Signature: _______________________________ 

Date: ___________________________________ Date: ___________________________________ 

  

Name of partner: 
___________________________________ 

Name of partner: 
___________________________________ 

Signature: ______________________________ Signature: _______________________________ 

Date: ___________________________________ Date: ___________________________________ 

 


